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MARYLAND LIGHTHOUSE INDUSTRIES UPSKILLING AND RESKILLING PROGRAM SOLICITATION FOR TRAINING GRANT PROPOSAL APPLICATION – APPENDIX A
This application is for eligible entities seeking funding from the Maryland Department of Labor (MD Labor) under the Maryland Lighthouse Industries Upskilling and Reskilling Program (Lighthouse Industries UP). Please complete all fields of this application and submit it with the other required documentation by 11:59 PM EST on Friday, April 24, 2026. Completed applications should be submitted via email to Brittney Hansen at brittney.hansen@maryland.gov. Submissions should be submitted as one PDF file in a single email. In addition, the Program Budget should also be submitted as a standalone Excel sheet (.xlsx). Documents should be submitted in the order that they are listed below in the checklist. To check a box throughout this form, double click on the box and under “Default Value” select “Checked.”
Prior to submission, please review the required documents in the table below to ensure a complete application is submitted. Applicants should carefully review the Maryland Lighthouse Industries Upskilling and Reskilling Program Solicitation prior to completing this application. Incomplete applications will not be considered.
APPLICATION SUBMISSION CHECKLIST
Required Documents

[bookmark: Check2]|_|  Letter of Application
[bookmark: Check3]|_|  Application (Appendix A)
· Cover Page (Section 1)
· Executive Summary (Section 2)
· Narrative (Section 3)
· Assurances (Section 4)
[bookmark: Check4]|_|  Submission Requirements (Appendix B)
· Signed letter(s) of commitment from at least three employers in the target industry
· Signed letter(s) of commitment from the organization that will serve as the Training Provider, applicable if the Lead Applicant is not the Training Provider
· Signed letter(s) of commitment from any Subrecipients, if applicable
· Signed W9 Form for Lead Applicant
· Certificate of Good Standing - required for Lead Applicant AND any Subrecipient
· A copy of official notice of tax-exempt status from the IRS, if Lead Applicant is an I.R.C. 501(c)
[bookmark: Check5]|_|  Budget (Appendix C)
SECTION 1: COVER PAGE
Please thoroughly review the Solicitation before completing Section 1. Provide a response to every question.
Project Summary
In Questions 1 through 9, provide the requested details about the proposed project.  
1. Provide your Project Title (e.g., “AI Upskilling for Biological Technicians”):
															
2026 Maryland Lighthouse Industries Upskilling and Reskilling Program Application

2026 Maryland Lighthouse Industries Upskilling and Reskilling Program Application
2. Target Lighthouse Industries and Sub-industries. Applicants must select at least one industry and sub-industry. To check a box, double click on the box and under “Default Value” select “Checked.”


1

[bookmark: Check1]|_|  Life sciences
[bookmark: Check6]|_|  Computational biology
[bookmark: Check7]|_|  Bioinformatics
[bookmark: Check8]|_|  Cell & gene therapy
[bookmark: Check9]|_|  Biomanufacturing
[bookmark: Check10]|_|  Technology
[bookmark: Check11]|_|  Quantum computing
[bookmark: Check12]|_|  Information technology
[bookmark: Check13]|_|  Cybersecurity 
[bookmark: Check14]|_|  Computer systems design
[bookmark: Check15]|_|  Nanotechnology
[bookmark: Check16]|_|  Software development
[bookmark: Check17]|_|  Data analytics
[bookmark: Check18]|_|  Artificial intelligence
[bookmark: Check19]|_|  Machine learning
[bookmark: Check31]
|_|  Aerospace and Defense
[bookmark: Check21]|_|  Navigation systems
[bookmark: Check22]|_|  Drones
[bookmark: Check23]|_|  Space technology
[bookmark: Check24]|_|  Aerospace data & intelligence
[bookmark: Check25]|_|  Aerospace manufacturing
[bookmark: Check26]|_|  Manufacturing
[bookmark: Check27]|_|  Advanced manufacturing
[bookmark: Check28]|_|  Food processing
[bookmark: Check29]|_|  Production technology & heavy machinery
[bookmark: Check30]|_|  Materials


3. Training Tracks. Applicants must select one Track. See Section 3.1.4 of Solicitation for more information. To check a box, double click on the box and under “Default Value” select “Checked.”
[bookmark: Check32]|_|  Transferable Skills
[bookmark: Check33]|_|  Emerging Technology Skills
4. What occupation(s) is the training targeting? List the occupations here: 
																																																																											
5. What is the Target Region for training? List the target region here:
																																																																											 
6. Amount of Lighthouse Industries UP Funding Requested (This amount should match the total award request included on the budget template): $	
7. Total Leveraged Resources (In Kind & Cash): $	
8. Total Project Budget (Amount of Funding Requested + Total Leveraged Resources): $	
9. Number of Participants to be Trained (This should match the total listed in Question 8 in Section 3 – Narrative): 								
Lead Applicant Information
In Questions 10 through 19, provide the requested information about the Lead Applicant.
10. Organization Name: 
11. Main Point of Contact:
12. Main Point of Contact Phone Number: 
13. Main Point of Contact Email Address:
14. Organization Address (Street, City, State, ZIP Code):
15. Fiscal Agent Name (if different than main point of contact): 
16. Fiscal Agent Phone Number: 
17: Fiscal Agent Email Address: 
18. Federal Tax ID: 
19: Is the Lead Applicant an I.R.C. 501(c)? To check a box, double click on the box and under “Default Value” select “Checked.”
[bookmark: Check34]|_|  Yes
[bookmark: Check35]|_|  No
Employers Committed To The Training Plan
In Question 20, list the employers that are committed to supporting the Training Plan. There must be a corresponding Letter of Commitment for each employer listed here. Refer to 3.2 in the Solicitation for more details and examples of potential employer commitments.
20. Employers Committed to Proposed Training. Applications must include at least three employer letters of commitment.



Training Providers
In Question 21, provide the organization responsible for delivering training. Refer to 3.2 in the Solicitation for more details. The organization responsible for Training must provide a Letter of Commitment.
21. Training Providers. If the Lead Applicant is not providing training, applications must include a letter of commitment from the organization that will serve as Training Provider.




Subrecipient Information
In Question 22, list any organization that will receive funding from Lead Applicant. For each Subrecipient, provide their Federal Tax ID. 
22. Subrecipients and Subrecipient Federal Tax IDs. Refer to 3.2 in the Solicitation for requirements of a Subrecipient. Subrecipients must provide a Letter of Commitment.
															
															
															
SECTION 2: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Please provide a clear and concise outline of the Proposal that does not exceed 400 words in length:
																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																	


SECTION 3: NARRATIVE
Please thoroughly review the Solicitation before completing Section 3. Provide a response for every question.
1. Strategic Goals and Statement of Innovation
1A. Describe your overarching talent development strategy and the main goals of the Training Plan. Please address how key programmatic components, including training and other project activities, work together and how this is an innovative approach to help Maryland workers adapt to evolving job markets and increase employer competitiveness.
																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																													
2. Industry Engagement and Assessment of Critical Workforce Needs
2A. Describe how the proposed training meets immediate needs of jobseekers, incumbent workers, and employers within the target industry. Outline the critical workforce and skills needs which will be addressed through the Training Plan.
																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																												
2B. How have you identified and defined the actual and projected critical workforce and skills shortages of the target industry (e.g. focus groups, surveys, data collection, facilitated workgroup sessions with groups of employers or jobseekers)?
																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																
2C. The Training Plan must be both data and experience-driven. Please list all data sources, in a consistent citation format, that were used to support the development of the Training Plan. This may include published studies, reports, and similar research. For unpublished data sources, including those compiled by the Lead Applicant and any Subrecipients, clearly explain the source and/or data collection process. This may include Labor Market Information. 
																																																																																																																								
3. Recruitment, Assessment, and Selection
3A. Describe the target groups identified for training (e.g., unemployed/underemployed individuals, veterans, former federal employees, incumbent workers). Include an explanation of why your chosen population is appropriate for the proposed training and target occupations.
																																																																																																																																																						
3B. Who will be responsible for recruitment? What methods will be utilized (leveraging partnerships with other employers and organizations, social media, information sessions, etc.)? If the Lead Applicant is not an employer, how will incumbent workers in the target industry be identified and recruited for training? The recruitment strategy should align with the target groups the project intends to serve. 
																																																																																																																																																																					
3C. Describe the assessment, screening, and selection process. What criteria will be used to determine candidates’ readiness and fit with the proposed training program (interviews, skills screening, for incumbent workers – supervisor recommendation, etc.)? 
																																																																																																																																																						
4. Training
4A. Which organization will serve as the Training Provider? Please provide a brief profile of their experience implementing the proposed or similar training.
																																																																																																									
4B. Which Transferable Skills or Emerging Technology Skills will the training address?
																																																																																										
4C. Does the Training integrate upskilling on AI tools and/or AI methods relevant to the target industry? If so, please describe how AI upskilling will advance training outcomes and job placement for participants. 
																																																																																																																																							
4D. Briefly describe the major topics/components of each training offered and any industry-recognized credential that participants will be prepared to earn as a result of training. For each training, include: 1) Name of Training, 2) Major Topics/Components, 3) Name of Industry-Recognized Credential, if any, 4) Length of Training (in hours), and 5) Description of the Training. 
																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																						
4E. Where will training occur (in-person, remote, hybrid)? How will the training be structured (how many hours per week)?	
																																																												
4F. Has the curriculum or training content already been developed? If not, who will develop the training, when will it be developed, and what resources will be used to design the training?
																																																																																																																								
4G. How will the Training Provider and/or Lead Applicant monitor and assess participant and program progress? 
																																																																																																																																																						
4H. Describe how employer partners will be involved in providing input and regular feedback about the training and education components to ensure they are aligned with the technical and non-technical job requirements and lead to successful job placement or advancement in the targeted occupation(s) and industry.
																																																																																																																																																																					
5. Supportive Services
5A. If supportive services will be offered, what organization will be responsible for providing these supports to participants?
																																																																											
5B. Which supports will be made available to participants, particularly those with barriers to employment, to help them overcome personal and structural barriers to successful completion and employment/advancement? Examples may include career navigation services, transportation, work or training equipment, child or dependent care, stipends, interview and resume preparation. If question 5A lists multiple organizations/individuals, please indicate which entity will be responsible for providing the stated supportive service.
																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																			
6. Job Placement, Retention, and Advancement Strategies
6A. How will the skill level of training participants be assessed upon completion of training?
																																																																																																																								
6B. How will incumbent worker training be assessed? How will success be defined for incumbent worker training? If you are not training incumbent workers, put N/A.
																																																																																										

6C. Describe any planned job placement, retention, and career advancement activities. How will the Lead Applicant, Employers, Training Providers, any Subrecipients, and other partner organizations be responsible for these activities?
																																																																																																																																							

6D. What services, if any, will be available to participants after they have completed training to support retention? Include any specific strategies to help participants take advantage of specific opportunities for advancement within the target industry.



7. Past Performance
7A. Has this training, or similar training, been offered before by the Lead Applicant or Training Provider? If so, please provide information about the funding source (if applicable) and the dates the program was offered. If this training or a similar training has not been offered, please insert N/A. 
																																																																																																																								
7B. Please provide performance outcomes for the organization's most recent or most relevant training program. Include quantitative results for each of the following, as applicable: Number of participants enrolled, Number of participants that completed training, Number to earn an industry- recognized certification or credential, Number to be placed into unsubsidized employment, Average Starting Wage, Wage increase or title promotion for incumbent workers. If not applicable, please insert N/A.
																																																																																																																																																						
7C. In reviewing the data provided in the chart above, as well as other performance metrics, did you consider the program successful? If yes, why? If no, why, and what steps will be taken to mitigate any challenges experienced that hindered success? If not applicable, please insert N/A.
																																																																																																																																																																		
8. Expected Outcomes
8A. Please list the anticipated outcomes should the project be awarded funding. 
a. Number of individuals trained
i. Unemployed/Underemployed
ii. Incumbent Workers
b. Number of individuals to complete training
i. Unemployed/Underemployed
ii. Incumbent Workers
c. Number of individuals to earn an industry-recognized certification or credential
d. Number of individuals to obtain a new employment position
e. Average Starting Wage/Salary
f. Number of incumbent workers to earn a wage increase
g. Number of incumbent workers to earn a title promotion
h. Any other deliverables the Lead Applicant will track
																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																				
9. Timeline
9A. Please include a detailed timeline of all activities related to implementation of the Workforce Training Plan. This should include, but is not limited to planning, recruitment efforts, training schedules, and follow-up activities. 
																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																							
10. Economic Empowerment
10A. Please describe how you will infuse and advance economic empowerment in the implementation of the project.
																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																												
11. Sustainability
11A. Please describe how you will remain sustainable in the absence of state funding.
																																																																																																																																																																																																																																																														
SECTION 4: ASSURANCES
Please thoroughly review the below Assurances and sign and date the application in the boxes provided. 
The Lead Applicant hereby affirms and certifies that it will comply with all applicable regulations, policies, guidelines, and requirements of the MD Labor and the State of Maryland as they relate to the application, acceptance, and use of Maryland Lighthouse Industries Upskilling and Reskilling Program funding in this project.
Lead applicant is on notice that MD Labor prioritizes grantees’ financial integrity and responsible stewardship of public funds. Applicants should be aware that MD Labor reserves the right to exclude any organization from consideration for funding if, through MD Labor's due diligence review, the organization is determined to pose a significant financial risk to the proper execution and oversight of the grant agreement. This assessment may involve a thorough review of the applicant's previous program and fiscal monitoring reports, public financial statements, audit reports, tax filings, organizational solvency, prior grant management history, and any other relevant indicators. The goal of this process is to ensure that grant funds are awarded to organizations with the necessary financial stability and capacity to meet the programmatic and fiscal responsibilities outlined in the grant solicitation and subsequent agreement.
Organizations deemed to present an unacceptable financial risk, including but not limited to those with a history of material audit/monitoring findings, significant financial instability, pending litigation that threatens solvency, or a demonstrable inability to properly manage federal or State funds, may be deemed ineligible for an award.
MD Labor may also take into consideration an organization's status concerning any current or past debts to the State of Maryland or the federal government, including but not limited to unpaid taxes or Unemployment Insurance obligations. 
Submission of an application constitutes the applicant's acknowledgment of this financial risk assessment policy and the applicant's commitment to provide all necessary and accurate financial documentation upon request to facilitate this determination. Failure to meet MD Labor's standards for financial responsibility may result in disqualification from the funding opportunity.
The Lead Applicant further affirms and certifies that:
1. It possesses legal authority to apply for the grant, i.e., an official act of the Lead Applicant’s governing body has been duly adopted or passed, authorizing filing of the application, including all understandings and assurances contained therein and directing and authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the Lead Applicant and to provide such additional information as may be required.
2. It will comply with applicable federal, State, and local laws regarding discrimination and equal opportunity in employment, and credit practices, including:
a. Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964;
b. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended;
c. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; and
d.  Maryland Annotated Code, State Government Article, § 20-601 et seq.
3. It will expend funds to supplement new and/or existing funds and not use these funds to supplant non-grant funds.
4. It will participate in any statewide assessment program or other evaluation program as required by MD Labor.
5. It will give MD Labor, or an authorized representative, the right of access to, and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to the grant.
6. It will assure that quarterly status reports will be submitted to MD Labor, as required.
7. It will comply with all requirements imposed by MD Labor concerning special requirements of law and other administrative requirements.
8. The Fiscal Agent acts on behalf of the Lead Applicant by performing all financial management duties of the grant and accepting responsibility for the proper use of grant funds. The Fiscal Agent is responsible for maintaining separate records of disbursements made on the Applicant’s behalf and disbursing those funds in accordance with the restrictions related to the grant. The Fiscal Agent takes full responsibility for managing and documenting grant expenditures, as well as submitting financial reports for the grant.
9. It will avoid any activity, employment, or business arrangement that would create an actual or apparent conflict of interest in the performance of its duties under any grant awarded. It will promptly notify MD Labor of any actual or potential conflict of interest that arises during the term of any grant awarded. Upon such disclosure, MD Labor will determine whether the conflict requires mitigation, modification, or termination of any grant awarded.
The Fiscal Agent is responsible for receiving and safeguarding grant funds. Furthermore, the Fiscal Agent is legally obligated to:
1. Maintain separate records of disbursements related to the grant;
2. Keep receipts for at least three years following closing of the grant;
3. Make financial records available to the State of Maryland and its representatives upon request;
4. Disburse funds in accordance with the purpose of the grant application; and
5. File the final financial report at the conclusion of the grant.


Project Title: 

Signature of Authorized Authority from Lead Applicant Organization: 

Printed Name and Title:

Date: 
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